
Ronald Reagan Presidential Library 

Digital Library Collections 

 
 

This is a PDF of a folder from our textual collections. 

 
 

Collection: Press Secretary, Office of the: Press Releases and 

Briefings: Records 

Folder Title: 07/13/1985 (#1495) 

Box: 37-Press Briefings 

 
 

To see more digitized collections visit: 

https://www.reaganlibrary.gov/archives/digitized-textual-material 

 

To see all Ronald Reagan Presidential Library inventories visit: 

https://www.reaganlibrary.gov/archives/white-house-inventories 

 

Contact a reference archivist at: reagan.library@nara.gov  

 

Citation Guidelines: https://reaganlibrary.gov/archives/research-

support/citation-guide 

 

National Archives Catalogue: https://catalog.archives.gov/ 

https://www.reaganlibrary.gov/archives/digitized-textual-material
https://www.reaganlibrary.gov/archives/white-house-inventories
https://reaganlibrary.gov/archives/research-support/citation-guide
https://reaganlibrary.gov/archives/research-support/citation-guide
https://catalog.archives.gov/


12:19 P.M. EDT 

SUBJECT 

TrlE WHI'l'B HOUSE 

Office of the Press Secretary 
(Bethesda, Maryland) 

PHESS B.k.IEFING 
BY 

Li~RRY SP .l.:J\KES 

Bethesda Naval Hospital 
Bethesda, Maryland 

July 13, l';j85 

INDEX 

PAGE 

Presiuent's Medical Upctate .•..•••••••••••••••• l-3l 

1 : l 7 P • i"l • EDT 

#1495-07/13 



THE WHITE HOUSE 

Office of the Press Secretary 

PRESS BRIEFING 
BY 

LARRY SPEAKES 

July 13, 1985 

Bethesda Naval Hospital 
Bethesda, Maryland 

12:19 P.M. EDT 

MR. SPEAKES: The President's surgery began at 11:48 a.m. 
Eastern time this morning in the operating suite here at Bethesda. 
The President left his suite at 11:15 a.m. It's about a two minute 
trip from the suite to the operating room. Mrs. Reagan walked beside 
him holding his hand as they proceeded down the hallway. She went to 
the beginning of the sterile zone in the operating suite. Both said, 
"I love you," and then she left him as he went into the operating 
suite. 

Time for quips: As he was preparing for surgery he had a 
mild complaint about proctoscopic discomfort from yesterday. He 
said, "After all you <lid yesterday, this ought to be a breeze." 

Earlier today Mrs. Reagan arrived at the hospital shortly 
after 9:00 a.m. The President this morning met with Don Regan and 
later with Don Regan, Fred l ' ielding and myself. He had read his 
report from the National Security Council. He discussed legislative 
matters with his Chief of Staff. 

In the latter meeting, the President discussed a letter 
which we are now distributing. It was signed at 11:32 a.m. Letter? 
Yes, it's coming from the back. The letter will speak for itself. 
He said to Mrs. Reagan, who stood by his bed as he signed, "I'm 
signing these letters, but you're still my First Lady." 

That concludes the events to the moment. 

Q What is the letter? I'm not quite clear. 

0 transfer of power? 

0 Is this a transfer of power? 

MR. SPEAKEB: The letter is being db:itributed to you and 
will be shown. 

Q 
of time? 

Is this a delegation of power for a specific amount 

MR. SPEAKES: Read the letter and you will 

Q Is th~re a problem in telling us? 

MR. SPEAKI;S: Read the letter and you will understand it. 

0 Well, will you stay here and fill us in? 

MR. SPEAKES: Sure. 

Q Larry, the letter says that Vice President Bush 
he'll discharge the powers of duty 

0 Can you bring the letter down here? 

MORE #1495-07/13 
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Q commencing with the anesthesia. Is this -- a 
legally and constitutionally binding sort of thing? 

MR. SPEAKES: I think the letter speaks for itself. I 
think if you read it in its entirety --

0 I've got the letter. 

Q Larry, was there any option besides this letter --

MR. SPEAKES: Why are you standing? 

Q Well, I'm -- since you wouldn't read the letter and 
tell us about it, you know, we are on television now and I'd like to 
inform our viewers what the letter says. Why don't you read it. 
You're the President's spokesman. Doesn't it make sense for you to 
inform the country? 

MR. SPEAKES: You can read the letter. 

Q Larry, was there an option to consider besides this 
letter, or was this the only option or was this --

MR. SPEAKES: Want to discuss options, David, but 
certainly, we've had discussions in the White House yesterday and 
this morning and discussions with the President. '!'hat's the 
President's decision. 

Q Only for the period --

Q Larry --

Q Only for the period during the anesthesia that this 
is a transfer of power --

MR. SP EAKES : 'l'ha t ' s --

u -- to the Vice President? 

MR. SPEAKES: 'l'ha t' s the President's intention, yes. 

Q Where is he? At the White House now? 

MR. SP£AK.I!.S: No. He's at his residence. 

Q Larry, does the 

Q And when did he get this letter? 

MR. SPEAKE8: 
He's been informed of it 
delivered as required to 
the Speaker of the House 

'l'he Vice President did not get the letter. 
by telephone and the letter will be 
the President pro tern of the Senate and to 
of Repres~ntatives. 

questions. 
quGstions. 

is. 

Q Yes. 

Q Are you going to 

Q after 11:32? 

Q after the President? 

MR. SPEAKES: I'm going to be here as 1ong as you have 
If you'll just take your time, I'll answer all your 

Q Is Bush now the acting President? 

MR. SPEAKES: The letter will tell you exactly what it 
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Q delegation of powers took effect at 11:32 a.m. 
this morning, is that correct? 

MR. SPEAKES: It took effect when the letter was 
delivered to the appropriate Congressional authorities -- formally 
took effect. The President authorized it to begin when he went under 
the anesthetic. Now, the specific time on that should be roughly 
between 11:15 a.m. and 11:48 a.m. 

Q Larry 

Q Larry, was it recommended by Regan and Fielding that 
this be done -- when the President did Fielding and Regan suggest 
to the President that he do this? 

MR. SPEAKES: There were a number of things discussed by 
the counsel, as usual, as we do business in the vlhi te House. We 
presented these discussions to the President. He participated in 
them and he made his decision. 

David? 

Q He says at the end that he'll notify the Vice 
President when this ends, so you anticipate that being this afternoon 
or -- before --

MR. SPEAKES: 'I'he doctors here advised us that it will be 
a matter of hours, yes. 

Q Did the doctors advise him to do this? 

Q Larry, when was 

Q Larry, Larry, is there any historical precedent 
to this? 

MR. SPEAKES: I think we're going to have to get a little 
better organized here. There's --

Q Larry, who informed the Vice President 

Ml{. SPEAKES: There's a front row act going on and I 
think it'd probably be good, if people are going to do live 
television standups, th(~)l probably should move to the rear to do 
those. 

Q Larry, who informed the Vice Presiclent? 

MR. SPEAKES: Don Regan by telephone. 

Q Larry, is there any historical --

Q What time, Larry? 

Q -- under the Amendment. 

MR. bPEl\.KES: Look, you' re going to have to get better 
organized if you want me to answer your questions. 

Helen askecl what time. And the quetition -- and the 
answer is that around noon today. 

Q An<l so that's about a half hour after the letter was 
signed'/ 
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MR. SPEAKES: Roughly that. Maybe -- lt was between 
11:30 a.m. and 12:00 p.m. 

Q And Regan called him from the hospital? 

MR. SPEAKES: Yes. 

Q Called Bush. 

Q Do you anticipate issuing another letter later this 
afternoon? 

MR. SPEAK~S: I t!1ink the President will. sign another 
letter when he wants to make the changes back. 

I'm having considerable difficulty with the J:>roadcast 
going on on the front row, an<l I know you all ar~. Do you want to 
I think we'll just stand by here until. tnc front row finishes its 
act. 

Q Larry, what do you think prompted the President -­

MR. SPEAKES: Helen, I can't answer questions with ti1is 
going on. 

W Larry --

U Larry, wnat was --

t'vl.k. SPEAKES: 1 can't answer questions until this 
finishes. And when it tinisi'tes, \ve'll gut in uusint?ss. 

U Will the television corres?on<lents pl~asc leave the 
room? 

U Buu. 

U Boo. 

iViR. DOi~ALDSON: 
at home vJatcl1ing this, and 

Let me ask you d question: 
il.e retused to read --

If you were 

U Sam, we need this information -- you can br0adcast 
it. 

MR. DONALDSOlii: I know you do --

Q You can ~o it somewhere else. 

Mh. DONALDS01.~: 'l'nis is ull .ii ve. 

Q We ull necu it. 

Q I um.l.erstarn ... th--1 t. 'fllcn let n:i.m speak. 

1Vil-<.. DO.NALDSON: 
be damned." Right? 

-- Aumiral Van.JeriJilt said, "'l'hc public 

U Let the Spokesmcin speak, piease. 

u -- lctst qu~stion. 

1'1R. SP EAKES : I can't until you felluws finisn. 

(,j Lorry --

MO.KE 
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MR. SPEAKES: You're going to have to establish some 
ground rules among yourselves or tni1s will look like the Amal press 
conference. It already does. 

MS. 'l'HOMAS: Larry, I want to say 

MR. SPEAKES: Helen, I'm sorry. 

MS. THOMAS: You knew you were on TV, and you should have 
let the punlic Know wnat was in the letter. 

1\/lR. DONALDSON: Well, he aoesn' t care abdut t11e public. 

MR. SPEAKES: Pardon? 

MS. TBOf'/!AS: You should have let the public know wnat 

MR. SPEAKES: Sam, do you want to state tnat again? 

i11l.R. DONALDSON: I uon' t think you car~ abi.)ut the public, 
if you tease the public which is watching by saying you have a letter 
from the President of tne United Status 

MR. SPEAKES: Well, I thinK 

M.t{. DONALDSON: -- l..>ut you won't 

HR. SPEAKES: you shuuld make some dGclsions among 
yuu.r sel vcs cts to whetl1e.r yuu can Hanctl~ this in a li V •a orvadcas t 
manner, or ~.,,heti1er yuu wuulcl like to handle it in some other manner. 
I'm goin9 to leave thdt t0 tne press corps to sort out among 
themselves. 

I come here to give you information. I am prepared to 
give you information on the Presid~nt. But I can't du it when 
tllena' s ct circuti cttrnOS.tJ.i:iere tu.king .t?laco on the front row. 

U Larry, can we continue with th~ bri~fing, please? 

MR. SPEAKES: ~IJ(;! will continue with the lJri-.ding. I I i. l 
oegin in tho .Jack. 

Q Could you tell us whetlwr ti1e d..;;cision to sign this 
letter was mal.le iil the meeting you descr lb~c. wi t,1 .F'red Ficlwing 

MH. SPEAKES: Yes. 

u -- anu yourself and Don Regan? 

I11rn.. SPEAK.LS: 'l'.i1e decision was made there 'uy the 
Presiuent in that 1118etin9 that tooJ< place arounu 10:JO a.m. tnis 
m0.cning. 

Candy. 

u If I couid clear U.tJ -- you said ectri.icr the letter 
wcts sign~d at 11:32 a.m., but Hudgan left his suite at 11:15 a.m. 

1•1H. SP EAKES: 
th~ suite at li:15 d.m. 

JOlldl1!'ld. 

10:32 ct.m., the lettGL was si~aed. He left 
Sut~ery ~~~an bt 11:48 a.m. 

Q Do yuu knuw specificdlly what drugs ha will 0e unLler 

1.•lH.. SPEAKES: 
tne front-row voluma. 

l'm surry. l'ru having -- getting you over 

Q Do you kaow specifically what drugs he will be 
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taking by way of anesthesia and how long they take to wear off? 

MR. SPEAKES: It will be a matter of hours. 

Q But you don't know which drugs they are and now 
groggy --

MR. SPEAKES: Yes, I do, but I lion't think we're going 
into tnat kind of detail. 

Q Larry, is this --

1'1R. SPEAKES: Tile surgery is planned to take about three 
hours, g.1.ve or take .::in hour. And tnen the recovery time would just 
be a matter of a very few hours after that. 

Q 
.25tn Amendment? 
other. 

Ldrry, is this a formal transfer of power und~r the 
The letter doesn't state that clear!~ one way or the 

,11HL SPEAKES: Chris, you have to r~ad the letter. I 
think when you rt:=ad it, you'll understand it. 

u Larry --

Q No, it uoesn't say that, one way or the other. 

i>'"UL SPEAKES: Reau the l.>eg inning of th~ -- the end of hte 
L.1.rst pardgrdpn and yuu'll understanu. 

U He says, "inc<.1paule ot discndrging tile 
Cunsti tutioual powl:.?.CS and .Jut ies ot th~ off ice ot the Pn.!si<.lent of 
t,1e Uni tea Sta t~s." 

!''lK. SPEAKES: Redd ttle end ot tile s~cond .()dray.rapi.l, lust 
sentence. 

Q h0 s.:1ys, "I 0.0 not believe thctt th~ uraftcrs uf tni~ 
Amenum~at 1ntenu.~u .1. ts dpp1 icotion to situations such cts tt"l.i..s instant 
une." But tt1en t,10 next wu.cd is "never t.h(;!less." 

1 ~on' t un.J0.cst,0u1u wl1y you Cdn' t ti:!11 us wh~ther this .1.s 
c:1. form.ii t.rc1nsfer of power or not. 

Mt{. SPr::AKt:S: C!1ri $, We 
I 

C:B goin-3 to l'=t tile l0t t1;l:' Spl;;!ai< 
for i ts~lt. 1'his is ,rn i111,c>ortant ducumont, and it is one tnat says 
exactly what we wc1.at it to say. Ansi that':a. where we want to 1.~avc it 
th8.r~. 

Q Aro y0u g~ing to cell us whether or not it'~ a 
forma.1 trctnsfe:.c? 

1•,A. SPEAKES: 
un~er tn~ Constitution. 
huw lll.:.:! wants to op~rc.lte. 

It meets the r~quirements, as requi:rcu 
It's a Jecision the PrcsiJent rnaKes about 
That's it. 

U ·~v1:;ll, may I ask the question, if ti1er~ ~Jere no i~th 
Amendment, would th\;: Pr""sident ue able to transfer fK)~J~.r, just 
OCCdUSC he thou91'1t it WuS tn-a: rignt thing to uv? 

HR. SPEAKES: Sur1..1. HG could du it oy letter. 

0 Larr t, cuu.1..:.. yuu say whct t really t>.n.>mpteu the 
Prcs1a.:.!nt to do this'? Becdusc ye;:;;t~:..·ui.:!j I tniuk, uasic.:t.i..ly, we WC:;!.t"I..! 

giv~n t11c impre::.siou thut 1t ~,ou1.Jn' t 01.? --

.i\'iR. ~p EAKES: i.~u, ma ' a,,i. 
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Q No? 

MR. SPEAKES: No. If you got that impression, you got it 
vJrong. 

Q But is -- OKay. Then was there anything -- one 
thing thdt prompted the President 

MR. SPEAKES: No. As I told yuu yesterday, repeatedly, 
and told you this morning, repeatedly, there are procedures dnd we 
will have tnose proceduces in place. The procedures were put i11 
place, oased on a Presidential decision. 

Q So this Wds decided yesterday that --

MR. SPEAKES: No. It was decidea oy the President in a 
10:30 a.m. meeting tnis morning. 

Q Would it be fair to say, Larey, that the President 
is not recognizing that the 25tt1 Amendment must be invokeJ in sucn 
situations, but in this particular case, he is cnoosi.ug tu do so? 

l'-'iR. SPEA.Ki:;S: As I indicated, tne Pre::.ident lays it out 
very specifically hcM he wants it 1,-;orued. Awl I ti1ink you're just 
going to have to uraw yuur conclusions from this and let tne letter 
sp~aK for itself. 

Q Larry, is there any --

• Vl.R. SPEAKES: I do not intend to amp.u fy on it • 

Gctry. 

Q Larry, is it p0ssio1e tndt this ~-nll. iJe rcsci11deLl uy 
tne ena of the tiay? 

l•lt<. SPEAKEb: Yes, it is cntir..:ly possiul.e d.nu expect.:;d. 

\..J Let.cry, is tiH::re dny historical pr~cedent tor t11is 
type o:t .1.~tter? 

-...i Any historicctl _preceL1~nt fut t111s typl:! --

Q ~Jilen George Bush ueciued tu return to Wds;:tiugtun, iw 
must hctve d.l.!"eauy k11uw.i:l about tl1e letter. Had a decision -- very 
close --

1"'1H. SPEAKES: Wait a minute. &top right tJ.1ere and say -­
why would you SdY ti:ldt? 

U H~ must iM.ve Known that th•-=Y ~wre mal<ing their 
d~cisiun ctn<l the uecision was pron~bly going to ue t!1i~ one. Is that 
why he retucneu? 

1"i!{. SP.i::AKES: No. 1 mean, your J:?.l:"emise is wrong, 
Alessandra, that h~ must nave known is not necessarily true. 

Q But he wds J:?.Cetty c.1.use to guessiug tnat t.tus \vas 
what was g(.)ing tu lldf>p~n, and tnat's why lle ..c~tu.cned. 

1\,'lH. SP EAK:i.::S: No, it ' s not • 

U You lldd no ii1kl.ing whdtsoeve.r that this might 
huppen? 

!Vik. SPLAKBS: This fldd Cs;!.tta.i.nly been di~cusse~ W.Ltll him, 

#l.495-07/13 
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been discussed with him in tne pa.st. But that's not the reason t1~ 
returned. 

Q But in his phone call --

MR. SPEAKES: And he did not know the President's 
decision at the time. 

Q But in his phone calls with Don Regan, surely this 
eventuality Cdme up. 

fviR. SPEAKES: Suri:!, they've discussed it, yes. And 
they've discussed it with their Counsel. But, as far as this -- as 
this oeing the reason for the Vice President's return, no. 'file Vice 
President wanted to do it because of his close, personal re.tat1Qflship 
with the Reagans . 

....... .... 

1'10RE f..i.4~5-07/lJ 
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U -- a medical question. Has the President, in the last 
14 months, or during this present year, ever had a barium enema? 

HR. SPEAi~ES: I don't t11inK so, George. I don't tnink 
he's Hacl any in connection witn his :cegular medical exams, and tnat 
woulcl be the only case tnat it would be. 

Q Tne sig1noidoscopy taat ,1e had, was it rigicl or 
tlexible, do you know? 

MR. SPEAKES: Plexible, I oelieve. 

Q Was it after 1984? 

I thi11k ootn we.ce flexible. 

Q At tile time tnat the first .i.Jolyp v.ias found, 14 months 
ago, wny didn't he nave tnem colost- -- I can't say it either. 

ViRS. SPEAKES: The full examination? I think tnat the 
first polyp ~ms benign, as was tile second one, and doctors at botn 
times advised that it was not necessa£y tu do so at tnat time. 

Q But it's not a question of whether it's benign or 
malignant. Tne question is wheti1e.c or not there' a some ti1ere and tne 
only way that you can tell i3 if you take a goou look. 

MR. SPEAKES: 1'nat' s r iyht. 

Q E$pecially since it's the President of tne United 
States, \'lily wouldn't they have taken a good looK th.coughout nis 'tli1ole 
colon'? 

i'1R. SPEAKES: ·rne 1n·octoscoJ?ic exam tnat 11e underwent in 
ootn cases is ~uite extensive, not nearly as extensive as tne one he 
na<l y1;sterday, but nevertneJ.ess it v,as ti1e medical advice. Doctors 
will give you varying opinions on it. There's one school of thought 
tnat you neecl not nave anoti'l.e:c examination because tnis one is 
benign. Tnat is a very definite scnool of tnougnt in the medical 
profea~ion, but at tnis time tney eJ.ected -- since they were going to 
go baci< in and remove this polyp -- tnat tney would nave tne full 
examination. 

Q Dut .:1lsv tae doctors wilJ. tell you ti1at if they nad 
loolrnd after tl1e first polyp tnat tney mat i1ave seen something, 
because ti1e size -- You uescrioe it as a large polyp, that poly.I;) 
could nave been growing for tne last 14 months, couldn't it? 

M.n. SPEAKES: ProoaDly longer in doctor's estimation, 
yes. 

iJ So if tne1 had done tlle more extensive _procedure 14 
months ago, tney dOuld nave seen it. 

MR. SPEAKCS: T,1at's true, but t11en a9ain, tnere's -­
this nas 0aen tnere foe a tiille. I D~lieve my medical knowledge is 
correct tmit it's not a ra_pi<ll,t growing polyp and --

Q put the President at ~v,e risk ~y not looKing ior 
it 14 months ago? 

r-,m. SP:CAKES : I can't make that judgment. 

\4 Larry --

,J Larry, did tne Presi\lent consul.t \-Jitn anyone else 
about turning over ti~ transfer ot government other than Don Regan 
and Freu Fielding? 

i•lR. SP.EAKES: Lfo, but tne Preoident' s own staff mdde 

i'-10RE #1495-07/13 
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extensive consultations witii legal authorities including the Attorney 
General and the Justice Department. 

Q Did anyone talk to anyone from the Supreme Court? 

MR. SPEAKES: Not to my Knowledge but I don't know the 
answer to tnat for sure. 

Yes, ma'am. 

Q -- anotner medical question. Do you know whetner 
t11is polyp is over a centimeter or not? 

MR. SP.EAKES: I do know the size, but we're describing it 
as a large pol,tp. Per haps we can be more precise when t11e surgery is 
completed. 

\.i Are we going to be a.Dle to talK to some physician;;;? 

MR. GPEAKES: Probably so, yes. But what information are 
you not getting tnat you want to get from a p11y::;ician? Anything 
specific tnat you're missing? 

Q L..i.c r:y --

Q Yes, I'd lix;e to .Know the size of the polyp. 

1.•IR. SPEAKES: Well, I coulu give it to you 

Q I' 111 a medical \vr i t.e.c. 

m~. SPEAKES~ I understand tnat. I Know tile size of tne 
f>olyJ? and I know tne location of tne polyp, iJut I choose not to givt~ 
it at tnis tifile. Pe:c~aps afterwards, eitner I will give it or a 
f>11,t:::.ician will. 

Q Lurry, 40 percem: of these polyps tnat looi< Denigil 
turn out to oe cancer, and tnen the question, of course, is --

MR. SPEAKr;S: You reau D.r. Hoffman this 1.uorning? 

Q Well, it's a Hopkins study. 

MR. SPEAKES: I understand. 

Q Tne question is spread -- the possibility is 
raic.coscopic s1:>read that ca.nnot ue pic;<ed up on a CAT Scan, and yet 
you said tnere was no evidence of spread in t,1e abuomen. How can you 
tell us tnat an<l where did you get ti1at kind of information oince --

HR. SPEAKES: If you ~,ill look carefully at what. I said, 
I said tiie CAT Scc1u r-evealeu. no evidenc~ of spread. An<l I'm sure 
that once tne su.cye:cy is underway, t!iey' 11 <lo a careful examination 
of the area, tney will do a careful examination of any tissue 
removed, and that will 0e their decision. 

Q Excuse me. Is tnis --

Q Larr.1, is it the ad.ministration's view tliat, aoscnt 
the 25th Amendment, the President could nave sent this same kind of 
let te.c aad i.1ad t.u.s Sdme ki!1d of te,upo.cary trausfer of power? 

i-1R. SPEAKES: I would assume tnat any President could 
nave, in tne ~ast Defore tne l5tn Amendment WdS ~assed, Dy -­
delegate autnori ty 'Dy letter. I guess v/oodrow Hilson could 11avc. 

of thing? 
Q Full authority, Dill signing autnority -- tnat kind 

MR. SPEAKES: I 6.on' t K,1ow. Tna t' s a hypotnetical 

#1495-07/13 
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because we're only dealing with tne 25th Amendment discussion that -­
oecause we do have ti1e 25th Amendment. 

u But ti1e y_uestion is, minus t!1e 25th Amendment, the 
President could 11ave delegated any kind of authority he wanted to on 
a temporary basis? 

MR. SPEAKES: You mean a previous President? 

Q No, this Presiclent. Minus tne 2St,1 Amen<lment, Ulis 
letter --

MR. SPEAKES: T11at's a legal question tnat I'm sure would 
be debated weeks on end oy legal scholars. I don't Know the anE:iwer 
to that. 

Q Larry, Biren Bay,-i, who, as you know, was head of t.he 
Constitutional Subcommittee, tne Senate Judiciary Committee that 
wrote the 25tn Aml:!ndment, insists tnat it was written for this very 
instance. That is, because of Lyndon Jonnson's operation, that an<l 
otner tnings ti1at 11a1:)pene<l in tlle '60s and going bacK to Ei::.enhower 
and 11is ope.cation -- tnay wrote it just to cover ti1is kind of 
situation. Wny does tne President feel tnat it wasn't meant for this 
situation? 

MR. SPEAKES: That's the President's judgment basecl on 
discussions held witnin tne legal minds of the government. 

Bill. 

Q Did tne President talk to the Spedker this morning? 

MR. SPEA~ES: Tne President has not spoken co the S~eaKer 
t11is morning. I'm not aware of any telepnone calls this morning that. 
he's made. 

Q Larry --

,J I::, tnere a f>lan to take any --

IJJR. SPEAKES: Don Regan was planning -- planned to ~o 

u We were told tnat tile President also spoke to 

i.'vl:rt. SPEAKES: I'll nave to cneclt but I'm not aware of any 
f>none calls. 

u Uno di<l Regan call exactly? Can y'OU give the list? 

MR. SPEAKES: Who did 11e call? 

Q Regan. 

NR. SPEAKES: He 0i_)Oke to -- he planned to ~,men I left 
hi111 a f.ev, minutes ago to speak to Sena tor Tnurmoad and Speaker 
0 1 1.\Jeill. 

Yes. 

U Is tllere a plan to take any lympn nodes to rule out 
microscopic spreali --

MR. SPEAKES: •rake any wnat? 

Q Lym.tih node~, to rule out micro:;;co,t:>ic sp.cead ot this 
thing, in case it should --
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MR. SPEAKES: I tninK we'll nave to asK the surgeons 
that. They had planned to, as is common in surgeries of these types, 
to remove certain parts of t11e lymfJll nodeo in the area of t11e blood 
supply and a certain portion of tne intestine. And t11at ~muld be 
examined. 

Peter? 
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Q Have docto~s given you any estimate about a minimum 
of how many hours it will take before the President is able to advise 
the Vice President -- he is able to discharge the duties? 

MR. SPEAKES: Yes. They've given us a time frame. I'd 
prefer to leave it at the moment as a matter of hours -- a very few 
hours after the completion of the surgery. 

Q Can you tell us how long the -- how long he'll be in 
anesthesia after the surgery is completed? 

MR. SPEAKES: Well, he won't be receiving it, he will be 
coming out from under it, but as I say, it probably will be a matter 
of just a few hours -- very few hours. 

Q Larry 

Q Larry, when the Vice President made his personal 
decision to return to Washington, had he had any conversations with 
the White House, Fielding or Regan concerning the legal situation 
that would occur when the President was --

MR. SPEAKES: My judgement is yes, there had been some 
discussion between Don Regan and the Vice President, but 
specifically, I don't know the details of it, and as I say, the 
decision was not made, and at the time the decision was made, the 
Vice President was in the air. 

Frank? 

Q Just to be very clear about this, though, the 
President is not transferring authority under the 25th Amendment 
he's doing it through this letter -- does this make the Vice 
President the acting President? 

MR. SPEAKES: Frank, I'm just yoing to leave the letter 
as it stands. We really. don't want to amplify on it anymore than 
what's in the letter. It speaks for itself, and --

Q It doesn't ~peak for itself, and I want all of us to 
be able to be clear about this, because I think the American people 
have a right to know. Is the Vice President now the acting 
President? 

MR. SPEAKES: Well, as I say, we'll stick with the 
letter. Were there other questions? 

Q Yes. Larry --

MR. SPEAKES: I tell you what I would like to do is 
discontinue the live coverage and go on background and give you 
guidance on this, because I think you need it. 

But go ahead, Mike -- let's get all of the on-the-record 
questions. 

Q Larry, at one point on this -- on the letter, are 
there any decisions -- Presidential-level decisions anticipated 
during this period, or were there when the letter was signed? 

MR. SPEAKES: No, no. If you look at the constitutional 
-- the powers of the President un~er the Constitution, there are 
things like the right to dppoint, the right to assign veto 
leyislation, et cetera, et cetera; none of that is anticipated. 

Q And the Vice President agrees not to take any action 
like that? 

MR. SPi:AKES: No. I don't think that type of agreement 
was sought from the Vice President, and the relationship as the 
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President alludes to between the Presieent and the Vice President is 
extremely good, and the two are in sync on policy matters, and I 
don't foresee anything like that, or the necessity for it. 

Q While we're on-the-record, could you tell us what 
Mrs. Reagan will be doing during the time of surgery -- any other --

MR. SPEAKES: Yes. Mrs. Reagan is having lunch, and 
she's waiting in the President's suite, and she will receive updates 
through the surgery. 

Q Who is with her, Larry? 

MR. SPEAKES: Jim Rosebush, her Chief of Staff, and 
that's it. Her brother, Dr. Davis -- Richard Davis -- is coming to 
be with her later this afternoon. 

Q -- briefing schedule the rest of the <lay? 

MR. SPEAKES: The briefing schedule is, we will probably 
notify you in a less formal way when the surgery is completed, and 
then we will come down in a couple of hours. 

Yes? 

Q -- will you be briefing here? 

MR. SPEAKES: Yes. We'll come down in a couple of hours, 
and I'll talk to the doctors, and chances are one of the surgeons 
will come down with me. 

Q When he comes out of the surgery, will you have a 
formal briefing 

MR. SPEAKES: ~o -- just a notification, unless I've got 
another quip or two. 

Q And then you think -- I mean it's -- and then you 
think a couple of hours after that, you'd come down --

MR. SPEAKES: Well, it may not be that long, Chris. You 
know, say you finish at 3:00 p.m., it could be an hour, two hours 
after that, but it depends on how long the uoctors want to monitor, 
how long they want to sit and talk among themselves, how long they 
want to sit and talk with us, a~d so we'll be here as quickly as we 
can. 

Yes? 

Q is there some assurance that we can talk to soIBe 
doctors this afternoon? 

MR. SPEAKES: Well, you'll be all right. Yes, we'll 
probably have a doctor down, but, like I say, if you've got anything 
that's troubling you right at the moment, I think we can get an 
answer for you, either here or run somebody down. 

Q I'd like to know whether this polyp is the kind that 
has a stalk, or is --

MR. SPEAKES: No, it's the flat kind. 

Q Sessile l{ind? 

MR. SPEAKES: Sessile kind, exactly. 

Q This transfer was not decided yesterday. Can you 
just say what some of the reasons were for deciding to do it today? 

Q -- some new -- some of the new --
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MR. SPEAKES: For deciding to do it today? As I 
indicated yesterday, as Don Regan did -- but there were discussions 
going on, and when we had some -- a presentation we wanted to make to 
the President, we sat down and talked with him, he made his decision, 
so --

Q -- new today, or any new reasons for wanting to do 
it today when they didn't decide yesterday? 

r.iR. SPEAKES: Well, there was no call to decide 
yesterday. It was a continuing discussion, and -- among the Counsel, 
among the Chief of Staff, among others of us in the White House, with 
the Attorney General, with the others in the Justice Department, 
Research, and then they visited with the President this morning. 

Q Is this unprecedented, Larry -- this --

MR. SPEAKES: Yes. As far as we know, there is no 
precedent for this. 

U When the President decides to transfer power back, 
or to take power back, how will he go about doing that: 

MR. SPEAKES: By letter to the Vice President. 

Q So it was really the recommendation of all of his 
advisors that this be done? 

MR. SPEAKES: Well, as I say, tbat we sit down and talk 
with the President, and we discussed the situation in full this 
morning at 10:30 a.m., and this was the decision he made. 

Q Is this the first time that he had 6iscussed it 
that this possibility that he might have to --

MR. SPEAKES: No, it's not. I think there had been other 
discussions prior to coming to the hospital in the White House. 

Q How long was the discussion today before he signed 
the letter? 

MR. SPEAKES: Ten minutes. 

Q Was McFarlane involved in those discussions, Larry? 

MR. SPEAKES: Bud McFarlane has been kept abreast, and 
we've talked to him about it. lie was not here at the hospital today, 
but we have talked to him about it this morning and yesterday. 

Q We have .t?ictures of him coming in here today. 

MR. SPEAKES: Duel? 

Q Yes. 

Q Yes, he was here. 

MR. SPEAKES: I didn't see him. What time did he come 
in? 

Q Well, maybe he was --

r-m. SPEAKES: Maybe he's still wandering around trying to 
fincl --

Q Maybe he's on the phone or something. 

Q He might be on the phone. 
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MR. SPEAKES: Could be, but I -- you know, we talked to 
him at the White House at 11:30 a.m. 

Q Larry 

Q Larry, does the return of power require a letter 
from the Vice President as well as the Presi~ent? 

MR. SPEAKES: Hike, I don't think so. I don't think so. 

Q Larry, if --

Q -- and I would like to say that I think that 
stories would be a lot clearer if we could have a doctor to whom we 
can address our questions. 
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MR. SPEl\KES: Do you have a question that•s pending 
that•s troubling you and maybe I can get it for you now if you have a 
problem. Otherwise, I said I would talk to the doctor and perhaps 
bring him down this afternoon. 

Q I think that a lot of your questions are very vague 
and I think that this story will be more focused and more clear -­
clearly detailed if we could have a dialogue with the doctor because 

MR. SPEAKES: Okay, well what•s your question that's 
vague? 

Q I don•t have one right now, but I think when the 
operation is over, we'll have a lot of them. 

MR. SPEAKES: I'm sure you will. And I think we can -- I 
think we'll be very helpful. I don't -- having been through more 
than one of these things in the past, I think we have been very 
forthcoming and straightforward with you and others and I think you 
had sufficient information to provide your stories. 

Q Well, just, say, on the basis of past experience in 
in Louisville, it's a much more clearer presentation when doctors 

di~logue with the press. 

MR. SPEAKES: We'd probably get Dr. De Vries here if we 
got him on a plane now. (Laughter.) 

Q Larry, in the event the transfer back of power, or 
whatever language you want us to use to describe this -- happens 
before you are ready to brict on surgery, will you notify us here? 

MR. SPEAKES: That what? 

Q When Reagan sends a letter to 

MR. SPEAKES: We'll notify you. I wouldn't anticipate it 
until late afternoon. So 

Q 
on the surgery? 

You wouldn't anticipate it until after the briefing 

iv.m. SPEAKES: Probably be after that. Yes. But we'll 
let you know. 

Q Larry, Dr. Joanna Shaw. In the presence of hidden 
blood in the stool, or a polyp, it is customary medical procedure to 
take an entire look at the colon from beginning to end. Are you 
really saying that it was sufficient, on medical basis, to just do a 
sigrnoi<loscopy --

NR. SPEAK.ES: Well, if you talk about hema -- he -- blood 
in the stool, that's not necessarily true. As we pointed out, there 
was -- there were teots betore the President's examination. Those 
tests revealed the presence of something that appeared to be a 
positive. 

Q It was either 

MR. SPEAKES: It could have been a --

0 -- or not --

MR. SPEAKES: No. It could have been a false positive. 
Have you heard about what causes -- sometimes causes a false positive 
in these 

Q Yes indeed. I'm a medical physician and I know 
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exactly what causes a false positive. 

MR. SPEAKES: Red meat or some vegetables do. 

Q Yes --

MR. SPLl-\KES: The President was retested following his 
examination and there were a number -- an exceptional number of 
negatives that 

Q Still, with a history of polyps, it would be 
standar<l medical procedure to take an entire look at the colon. Even 
if we're talking March -- it would have been customary procedure 
either to do a barium x-ray with air contrast or a colonoscopy at 
that time. And, in fact, in the first instance when the polyp was 
discovered, it would be r,tandu.rd medical procedure to do a routine 
examination of the colon. 

M.R. SPEAKES: ~Jell, I can say to you, and I think you 
recognize it if you would like to, that there's more than one school 
of medical thought on this. And, that was the advice given. 

Q -- advice. 

MR. SPEAKLS: Pardon? 

Q So you are saying, in fact --

Q This is sill:y. 

Q -- thctt a limited examination of the colon is 
standar<l medical procedure in the presence of a polyp? 
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MR. SPEAKES: As 1 said, that was the m~dical 
recommendation given to the President and to his family and to his 
staff. The President accepted it. You will find out that there are 
two scnools of medical thought on this, and we followed the one that 
~vas given to us. 

Q Larry --

Q Who gave that 1nedical opinion? 

1~1{. SPEAKES: The physicians that were participating. 

Q His personal physican or the White House physicians 
or expert medical advice from a gastroenterologist or 

MR. SPEAK£S: We got a number of opinions on it and that 
was the basis of our decision. 

Q So the doctors refuse to be identifi~d, giving this 
dt:cision? 

1,v1R. SPEAKES: vJe uon't customdri.1y iocntif.t the 
doctor-patient advice. Is that custom in your profession? Is tndt 
part of your medical ethics? 

u I tnini< when it's the President of the United 
Status, perhaps somebouy should knuw who's g.i..ving t,l~ opinion tu the 
President an~ whose advic~ he is following --

MR. SP£AK£S: No. 

Q -- 0ecause u~pecialLy wh0n, if yuu are correct in 
suggesting tuat ti1cre might be a difference of opinion, which I 
wonuer about. 

HR. SPili\KES: 
tliiterencc ot opinion? 

You mean you don't think there's a 

Q I don't t11inl< ti1ert;!' s a difference of opinion on 
cnecKin9 out the entire colon, an~ tne President's either. 

MK. SP.LAKES: 'U1~.ce certainly is. 

U 'l'nc doctors that conducte-:i that examination are on 
-- their ndmes are on recortl, it's a matt~r of record. Right? 

1'.vt.k. SPEAKES: But not the ones that Here consul tell wi ti1 
by tilof;~ doctors. 

U Larry, diu the President decide to write tnis letter 
0ecause of any national s~curity d~velopments or concerns from 
intelligence tnctt miynt i1ave developed in the l.:ist fe~v i1ours? 

Mk. SPEAKES: I wou~d steer y0u dWcty trow tnat. 

Q I dlSO --

U Wnat <lid he say? 

u -- r~cdll in 1 ~81 when t,1e President ~vas opera tGJ. 
on, Cdn we assume tnat something like this was nut dona becduse tl1era 
wasn't ~avance planning? In other words --

r·lR. SP BAKES: 
assume w11at? 

I Cdn't quite hear you, Owen. Do you 

U vvhen ti'!.~ Pr~si<lent was ueit1g op~rateu on in 1981, 
tlH~.re wa::; no similar letter 1.--1:citten. Can we assume that'& uecduse 
there ~Jasn' t any advance Wdrnin~, it ~,as d spontaneous --
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MR. SPEAKES: ~vasn' t any advance ~~arr1ing, and as you may 
recall from the history of t~e occasion, the majority of the Cabinet 
including toe Vice President at d po.int within a couple of hours was 
assembled in the White House. 

I 

u Larry, can I follow up on thdt? Did the episode in' 
I 

1981 influence the President's thinking as to how this one should be , 
approached'? 

MR. SPEAKES: In 1981, we made a very thorough rcviei?W in 
the White House of all of the circumstances including the legal 
circumstances. And we took. all of that into consiucratiotl, our 
discussions at that time and subsequent to that, in making this 
tlecision. 

Q Tue review was after the assassination att~mpt, you 
reviewed what had happaned and you took. that into account tnis time? 

MR. SPEAKt:S: Tl'1at' s right, y~s. 

u I think tnay've gon;.; off of live TV. Maybe you --
you talked aoout giving us some background information. 

MR. SPEAKES: Yes. Are we comfortable? We'll nave to 
cut tne lights down and 

Q Larry, 
deliveretl and by whom? 
Busn? 

one more thiug. How are these l.etter:::, beiug 
What's the process to get the message to 

MR. SPEAKES: The.f wil.l !Joi:! deU.vcr~d iJy a mess~ngcr, uut 
I uon't know whether -- I yucss a guy will come out here and get in a 
car and go. It coul~ be one of the Congressional liaison people. 
May~e I could.find uut foe you. 

U Larry, whore, physica.lly, will Butin be located 
during this periotl when tne President is unconscious? 

MR. SP~AKES: I believe he is in his resiuence, but w~ 
c<ln cncck tnat to see if he's gone to his office at the White House. 

U You expect him in the White House ldter was the 
ans~-1er tu that? 

Mrt. SPEAKES: Yes. 

SENIOR AlJi'11.i.:\JIS'i.'HATIO.N OF1'' lCli-\L: All right. Lightz. Can 
the lJ.yi1ts 90 down wi tiluut _t>roblem or do we have to w;:ii t'l wfn~n I S\a!C 

the ey~s go away from the cameras, tflen I know we'r~ off. 

Let me sJ.:Jeak on DEEP BACKGROUND, and then if you wish to 
chctn~e it, I Cdn giva you tue -- really, the wnol~ story. 

First of dll, we'r~ Jealing with -- in an unprecedented 
situation, a situation that is cl.~arly unchartetl as far cts the lciyctl 
la!nd of it. There's been a coni::iii.lerable ctmount uf research, as we 
point<.;:d out, since 1 :H:H, anu a more intcnsi ti~u researc11 over tue 
last wueK or so to try tu determine which way we wanted to go on 
tnis. 

U Last week'i 

SEi\i!OR AD1'•1INIS'l'i<A'rlON Of'FIClAL: Sun~. ~Jnen it ~hlS 

uDv lous thi.: President \k1s cumin9 to the hos_pi t,,u. dnd tna t i1e would be 
un~ac some form of sedation yestoruay. 

U Thece were Pcesid~nts in the past --

' SENIOR Al)MINIS'rRNflON OFFICIAL: p~'rdon'? 
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Q 1'here have been Pres1c.:tents in the past who --

SENIOR ADMINISTAATION OFFICIAL: I can't hear you. 

u 'l'here have been Presiuents in the pdst --

SENIOR ADMINISTRATIO~ OFFICIAL: 
preceaent fur the use of t~e 25t~ Amendment. 
not medical. 

Q Let him -- go ahead. 

Q Let me finish this. 

Q Finish what you --

There has been no 
we're talking legai, 

SENIOR ADr•dNISTRA'l'IO.N: Tile lady wants to argue 
prcceuence. As I say, legal, nut medical. 

Q I didn't say preceocnce no. Go ahead. You 
didn't understand me. It's okay. 

SENIOR i\.D1ii1INIST.i.{AT IOi~ OFF ICli\.L: I'm trying to. 

So ti1ere were consiclerdt>le Jiscussiuns about tt1i:;; -- 11uw 
to do it. We not only w~re dealing wi tn no preccdcmce in thcl past, 
but ~;1e knew thd t we we:re iu tile p.cocess of sett i.ig prt;)cedence. And 
this P~esident or futur~ Pr~sidents who might want to nave a tootn 
pulled o.r mignt have tne type of sur9eri o.r procedure that he had 
yesterday wn~re 11e was mildly sedated, but not fully sedated, and 
where dOC;!S it com<= into play. 

Questions like, docs the 25th Amendment look at a W0odrow 
Wilson-type situation wilere a president either can ant1cipate or 
f)~rhd.ps not anticipate a long p....:.r.1.ud of incapdcitation. All tnat was 
revi~w~d. This is g0in9 to ~ca very ori~f period of just three 
noun, for tn~ surgery, roughly, and just a f~w hours after that as to 
when he'll be fully rational and able to make any dacisivn. 

Tnen you looK at what powers were to b~ transfarred as I 
allude~ to in the on-the-record -- that the~u ~re a limited, only a 
limited numoer at actions, almost none, tnat would have to be d0ne -­
appoint,nents, sign oill~, or things like that -- ouriug tnis time 
pcriou. So the President, in order tu l.>e what he felt like was 1.:>ein9 
on tne safe side on it, he decide<l ti1i & was tha thing to uu. 

We Know that people are goin~ to look back at what we did 
to be sure thdt we had taKen all tnd prudent steps to be absolutely 
up tu s~oeu and ctOl<:! to o~~rac.e the Executiv~ Branch dnd maKo 
decisions on bena.1.f of the guvc.;rnmcnt. So we tooi< this step. 

Now, you Cdn sue ther~•s a CdVedt in tnere about whether 
wa really Oeiieve in tne 
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-- that tnis is a 25ti1 Amendment situation. Tnat' s why I was very 
careful aoout what I was saying. 

On the othe:c i1a.nu, we a.re maK1.ng the step to taKe this 
change of power, so, I guess you couid say, for all practical 
purposes, George Bush is Acting P:cesident anu this is tantamount to a 
25tn Amendment. That's about as helpful as I can be. 

Q -- an actual 25t.ti Amendment? 

GENIOR ADHHHS'I'HA'l'IO.N OFFICIAL: I t11inl~ I would nave to 
pin the lawyers down again -- talk to Fred again about that to De 
sure. We're clearly leaving ourself the little out tnere about t~e 
President. 

I nope everybody i:eali zes I Im Sf)eaJdng OU DEEP BACKGROUND 
anu ti1is is what you write youraelf ana it's not tor attribution to a 
Senior Official or anybody. 

David's waiting. 

~ In 1981, as you Know, tnere was some criticism after 
tne fact of how it was 11andlec.l, and you seem to i:>e saying t11at w·nat 
you wanted to do this time was avoid the criticisms afterwards that 
you weren't pruuent and take this proper --

HIL SPEAKl::S: Tnat' s one of the factors, Dc:1viu, tnat we 
looked at, because, certainly, as I sdy, we're in an unprecedented, 
uncharted legal waters and, ce:ctainly, we'll nave a lot ot looking 
over our shoulder after this is over, and we wanted to be sure that 
we were on solid legal g.rouncl, without setting ti1at precedent that 
would bind this President or otners. 

i'liKe. 

Q Is b1e.re any y_uestion ii1 t11e mind of anyone in the 
administcation t11at the Vice President is, r i9.c1t now, capable of 
com111andiilg tlie i\rmea Forces of tne United St.ates? 

MR. GPI:AKED: .No. Tnere's no question in anyone's mind 
that tne Vice President is a0le to act as a oasis of this letter. We 
believe it's L1O.roughly researched. It's oasetl on 01)inion of the 
Actorney General, and it's -- or the Justice -- Attorney General -­
a11d it's fully im,t?lemented. And, if you will note the provisions of 
tile 25th Amentlment, this meets all t.uose p:i:ovisioc,s. So vJe' re really 
ti~toeing, is all it amounts to. 

Q ·.1ould you agree to put tilat statement on ti1e 
record? 

MR. SPEAK~G: \Jilat ciici I say? 

Q Tnat tnere is no question 

u Th~re is no question. 

Q -- tne Vice President is able to act on tne basis of 
tnis letter. 

3:ctHOR ADMii:HSTHATION OFFICIAL: Hay cloz1' t you ;;ay 
"Administration Officials oelieve that the letter gives a solid legal 
nasis tor tile Vice Presicteilt to act with tne tull powers of tile 
Presidency"? 

Q Absent the 25th Ameuctinent. ~-ll1at did. your re~earcn 
sho.·1 you gave the President the power, absent tne 25th Amendment, to 
turn over nis office to anyone a0~ent a resignation? 

SENIOR AD1·-ti!NISTRATION OFFICIAL: In ot11er words, if we 
had not -- if we said tnis isn't the 25tn Amendment, nun? 
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Q You have saiJ. I gather you sdid --

SENIOR ADMINIST11A'rION OFFICIAL: I would guess, Sam, that 
you -- that if th~re was some debate about it, that is this a legal 
document? 

u Does it hdve to be if George Dusn --

SENIOR ADMINISTRATION OFFICIAL: I mean, see, ile 
you can do 
authority to 
A<lmendme11 c • 

nave vl!'itten a letter to say, "Dear George" 
know, you've got my power to -- I give you the 
stead with t11e -- vii thout mentioning ti1e 25th 

could 
you 

act in my 

Q That'::; my question. Do they think the Constitution 
gives a Prasi<lent, exceJ:?t for tile 25tn Amendement, t11e power to say, 
"I'm not going to discnarge the duties ot my office." Let George do 
it• II 

GENIOR ADMINISTR.".\'i'ION OFFICIAL: I tnink there is at 
least that option, cut I woultl gueso if it wds reviewed ind judicial 
manner after t:ne fact, I guess f)eO,t,>le would try to -- whet!ler they 
ueing incapacitated would come into play there. I -- it's a legal 
question that's pro~ably subject to endless debate. 

Jonn? 

Q Bhen tnose who we:ce involved in drafting the 25th 
Am\;ndraent tnat Sam cited, Bi:cch Bay11 earlier, sdid tnat it was 
dratted precisely to cover sucn situations, why does the President, 
in tne letter, maintain tnat ne doesn't believe the drafters intended 
such --

S:::!:t:HOR ADl\lHHSTRATIOl~ OFFICIAL: T11ere is a iJOJ..f of 
Congressional record of ~ebdte in tne Congress as tnis was done as --
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and I can cite it to you -- that what constitutes incapacitation -­
is it a long period, is it a short period? So, that's part of it. 

Q What sort of circumstances do you think the 25th 
Amendment should be invoked on? 

SENIOR ADNINISTRATION OFFICIAL: Well, it depends. It's 
in the mind of whoever wants to invoke it. Is it for a bit of a 
period where you're having your wisdom teeth taken out, or is it for 
a period like yesterday, when our opinion and our judgment that the 
President would have been capable of acting, had a question arisen 
during that mild sedation yesterday? 

Q Forgive me, I'm still confused. Are you invoking 
the 25th Amendment, or are you not? 

SENIOR ADMINISTRATION OFFICIAL: Well --

Q You can say you mentioned it, and you might not have 
had to mention it. The ~uestion is --

SENIOR ADMINISTRATION OFFICIAL: I tried to give you 
language that would probably -- that you would have to use, and that 
was the administration believes that the Vice President -- a legal 
basis for the Vice President to act. 

As far as the 25th Amendment, as I pointed out to you, 
we're being very careful, because we are involved in a 
precedent-setting situation. 

Q Is there a specific 

Q Well, what you're can we -- so what's the answer? 
I still don't have a -- I mean, is it a yes or a no? Are you -- or 
aren't you? 

SENIOR ADMINISTRATION OFFICIAL: I think you're going to 
have to say that -- and this you'll have to say on your own -- that 
the letter is -- carefully avoids setting a precedent, and the 
President so states in a caveat there -- a disclaimer -- in the end 
of the first paragraph, as I pointed out to you on-the-record. 

But he goes on in the beginning of the third paragraph to 
say not intending to set a precedent binding anyone to hold this 
office in the future. But he says, it is my intention, so you would 
just have to say, maybe you can say it for all practical purposes, 
this involves a 25th Amendment-like turnover of powers, but --

Q 
invoking it? 

So is it fair to say you're tiptoeing around 

SENIOR ADMiiHSTRATION OFFICIAL: In fact, I used those 
very words just moments ago. 

Q And the reason you're tiptoeing is to avoid a future 
situation with a toothache? I mean, why are you 

SENIOR ADMINISTRATION OFFICIAL: Well, any type of mild 
sedation, Johanna, that -- who is to determine what -- how much 
sedation renders a President incapacitated, as the 25th Amendment 
says, so who can make that judgment? We tealize that we ate in the 
process of setting a precedent here, so --Jim, is that you? 

Q Yes. I understand that you don't want to go -- the 
25th Amendment, that you don't want to set the precedent. Dut if the 
President believes that it is prudent to take this step, what is the 
concern for not setting a precedent, or for leaving that open to 
judicial interpretations? 

SENIOR ADrHNISTRA'l'ION OE'FICIAL: This is about the fourth 
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time on this. If a President undergoes mild sedation for a tooth 
extraction or for a proctoscopic examination, is that incapacitation? 
That's what we're trying to do, because there are degrees of it, and 
I think it would have to be a judgment, and we simply don't want to 
set -- we aon't want to set a precedent, because we realize we're 
doing it. 

Q You're concerned particularly about the definition 
of incapacitation? Is that whe~e the focus is? 

SENIOR ADMINISTRA'l'ION OFFICIAL: Yes. 

Q Larry, why can't you let this be decide~ on a 
case-by-case basis and apply your case with the fact that he's out 
for three hours --

SENIOR ADf.lINISTIU\TION OFFICIAL: 'l'hat 1 5 basically what 
we're doing here. 

Q that the 25th Amendment be invoked, period? 

SENIOR ADMINISTRATION OFFICIAL: Well then, the next guy 
that comes along that has a two-hour, he's -- he says, well, three 
hours is sort of the time limit, so -- or if he has a four-hour, he 
says, "I've got to invoke it," but if it's two hours and 55 minutes, 
does he invoke it? 

Q Why don't you let them make their case at the time, 
anC: you cJo yours 

SENIOR ADrlllHS'rRA'rION OFFICIAL: That Is basically what 
we're doing here, Gary. 

Q -- nit back and wait for the 25th Amendment:' 

SENIOR ADMINISTRATION OFFICIAL: Well, we're just being 
very careful about it. I say, for ail practical purposes, yes, but 
we're not saying that. Yes, it is 25th Amen6ment, but we're not 
saying thc:it. 

Q You just said it. 

SEi:HOR ADMINISTRATION OFFICIAL: Ho, I said for all 
practical purposes, and that's the way you shoulC: word it in your 
piece. Let me once again -- this is third time -- emphasize that 
this is deep background and cannot be attributed to an administration 
official or anyone. This is me trying to give you the benefit of my 
Fred Fielding contracts and constitutional law. 

Q -- raisin~ objection --

Q Was there a difference of opinion among those 
advisors that the President discussed this decision with on whether 
to invoke? Everybody agreed? 

SENIOR ADMINISTRA'rION OFFICIAL: No. There was basically 
a number of degrees of doing this, and all of the options were 
discussed by udvisors. Various opinions were offered. There was no 
basic disagreement. ?he way we do business on this or any other 
matter is, you simply go before the President and say, "Here's what 
we've discussed anl here's some ideas. What <lo you want to do?" Anc1 
he didn't hesitate and said, "This is the route I want to take." 

Q Are there any medic~l details that you can divulge 
to us under this situation, such as the size 

SENIOR ADi•1Ha3'rRATION OFFICIAL~ No. We' re -- there's 
really no big reason for that except just a little sensitivity here 
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and there that we'd like to hold off on. I think once we tjnish 
and I probably will get Dr. -- the surgeon to come down with me. 
What's his name? 

Q Oller? 

S:CNIOR I-~miINIS'l'RATIOt~ OFFICIAL: Oller. 
call him "Olney" -- Oller -- Dr. Oller to come down 
details, but I'd like to sit down and talk with him 
Regan would, also. 

Yes, I want to 
and give you some 
first, and Don 

Yes, ma'am? 

Q Could you be more specific about how many tests 
showed blood in the stool and how many tests were negative? 

SENIOR Arn,:iINISTRA'rION OFFICIAL: Well, once again, even 
the President of the Unite6 States is entitled to have his 
sensitivities protected. He saw the entire television coverage last 
night of his lower intestine, so -- I mean, he watched the 11:00 p.m. 
news last night, ant so -- well, he learned a lot from it -­
(laughter) -- and basically, the coverage last night was commendable. 
I don't have any problems with anybody, an<l I don't think there were 
a whole lot of second-guessers out there, although some have arrived 
on the scene today. 

So -- Owen? 

Q -- raised the issue of the transfer of power with 
the President, and when was it raised? 

SENIOR ADi:1IrHS'l'RATION OFFICIAL: When was it raised? 
There was there have been conversations with the President in the 
last wEek or so, and I doi1't have the specific day that they talked 
about it. 

~ Can you give us more specific 

Q Was it Res an or l11eese, or --

SENIOR JWHINISTRATION OFFICIAL: Regan and Prec.1. 

~ Did he ever have a personal conversation with Bush 
about it? 

S.GNIOR AD:-lINISTRA'l'ION OFFICIAL: He and Bush huve had 
conversations alone, but -- well, they've certainly met in the past 
week, but I don't know the details of those conversations. 

Yes? 

Q This is a logistics ~uestion. Is this being piped 
in -- and others being tJiped into the Press Room downtown ·? 

SElUOR ADHINISTRATION OFPICIAL: I believe it's going to 
the White House, yes. 

Q How much of a surprise was it for both the President 
and his eoctors the finding of this other polyp? 

SENIOR ADi•iINIS'l1 RA'i'ION OFFICIAL: They knew the 
probability of this kind of thiny and they had certainly discussed 
it, but honestly, we were -- we had two schools of thought about if 
you have a benisn polyp of the type that we had, you remove it, and 
you have to do no more. 

Q Are we still on deep background? If so, can we go 
to background, at least? 

~R. SPEAKES: Let me give you something on-the-record 
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that P2te's got for us. Richard Hauser, who is the Associate 
Counsel, I believe the De~uty Counsel at the White House, delivered 
this letter to Senator Thurmond's office and Representative O'Neill's 
office. After Don Regan spoke to them, ·Regan called at approxiraately 
12:00 noon, at about the time the President went under the general 
anesthetic. 

Will there be another letter? Yes, there is a letter 
that goes to Thurmond and O'Neill. No letter to the VP, but he will 
be advised. The VP is at his residence, so -- okay. 

Back on-the-record, or do you want to stay on -­
whatever? 

Q On-the-record. 

SENIOR ADi:-iINISTRl\TION OFFICIAL: All right. 

Q When does this transfer go back -- of power go back 
to the President? Dees he have to write another letter, or --

SENIOR ADMINISTRATION OFFICIAL: That's just what I said, 
yes. He will write a letter to the Vice Presi~ent. 

Q So that will be --
I mean, will he 

He writes a letter an~ signs it? 
after he --

SEtHOR ADrdNI.STf<ATION OFFICIAL: i.ate this afternoon, 
after he comes out and the doctors m~ke D determination that he's 
certainly no longer incapacitated by the surgery. 

So 

U Can you give us a general idea when you might be 
back this afternoon? 

SElHOR ADHii:HS'l'RATIOlJ OFFICIAL: I woula think, barring 
getting with some long-winded doctors, is to do it before 6:00 p.m. 
for sure, Dick -- probably not before 4:00 p.m., but if he finishes 
at 3:00 p.m., it could be as early as 4:00 p.m., as late as G:00 p.m. 
That's my guess. 

So -- Chris? 

Q Two questions. One, the letter says after 
consultations with my counsel and the Attorney General, did the 
President ever actually consult personally with Meese? 

SENIOR ADMINISTRATION OFFICIAL: I don''I.: believe so. 

Q And secondly, in the last 24 hours, were there any 
particular meetings that you can talk about on this question of 
transfer of power other than the one this morning in the hospital 
room at 10:30 a.m.? 

SBNIOR ADf.iINISTRA'11 ION OFFICIAL: Well, we had discussions 
yesterday afternoon at the White Ilouse when we understood that the 
extent of the general anesthetic and had the report of -- that we 
were going ahead with the surgery today. And then --

Q When was that? was that before or after you briefed 
us? 

SEHIOR AlJMii:HSTRATION OFFICIAL: It was some before and 
some after. 

Q And who were the main people involved in that? 

GENIOR ADMINIS'I'RATION OFFICIAL: Donald Regan and 
Fieloing. 
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Q Was Hrs. Reagan in that meeting? 

SENIOR ADMINISTRATION OFFICIAL: No. 

Q Was hcFarlane in that meeting? 

SENIOR ADi-iINIS'.i'RA'rION OFFICIAL: Yes, Bua was in and out 
of that meeting, yes. 

Q Where is the President -- in this building, and what 
does his room look like? 

HR. SPEAKES: I can give you -- I've got to come to the 
trivia, too. The President's room in this suite, and we have the 
I have somewhere the number of rooms and so forth in it -- is a 
sizeable room, probably 15 by 30 feet. There are two single beds in 
there. It's a typical hosfital bee) of the modern variety that raises 
the back up and <lown. 

,,1rs. R.eagan brought out a number of family pictures -­
color ~ictures of the family. Seated at his tableside are -- is a 
picture of Mrs. Reagan alone, and the bedside table, and then there 
are otll€r pictures of the family in the room. He is -- he was 
dressed this morning in lime-green pajamas, short-sleeve, long pants 
uith no collar, but a white ~iping around the neck of the PJs, and --

Q Lime-green pajamas? 

~ Designer pajamas? 

MR. SPEAKES: Now, the surgical suite is about two 
minutes away. It's on the same floor, down a hallway with a couple 
of turns. It is one that's a sort of a co-operation there where 
there are a number of surgical rooms adjacent to a center core. It 
is your average surgical facility with a table in the center an~ 
lights over it, et cetera. 

It is a facility that bas a -- I went through it this 
morning in my own 
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wnite suit and green cap and shoe covers an~ it nas a viewing area on 
a second level. As tar as I ~now, there was no one except security 
to be present in the viewing drea, riut there are s~veral seats in the 
viewing area that looks over tho center of the operating table. 

U What fl00r is he on 

Mf<.. SPEAKES: Wi\at fJ.our is it un'? Probabi.y be just as 
well we don't give tndt uut. 

Q This building? 

MR. SP~AKES: Pardon? 

U Is it just this building? 

MR. SPEAKES: I don't knuw whether it's in this building 
or not. It's dll connecte~. 

Q It's not in thdt tower, is it? 

NR. SPEAKES: I don't think so. 

Q ~•H\c:1t is the sterile room you spoke of'l Is that a 
room befure you go in 

M.k. SPEJ-\.KES: L'llo, it's dn area in the corridor where th~y 
u.on't let people unless th~y are uressed in whites or greeus go uown 
the nall. 

U Dia .Y1rs. Keagan have on the --

••lR. SPfilii<hS: illo, sh~ did not c1nd sil~ stup,t>~d there. 

It seemed .Lik~ I had une more good littl~ tidbit, out I 
can't think of anything elsu. Frdnk's nad enough. 

Yes, Alcssdndra. 

Q ~-Jnen Reagan w.:-is m~(:ltinl.j wi t!1 Ru9an tnis morn.ing, 
where was he? Was he in nis bod or in nis --

MR. SPEAKES: He was in his suite in his oed witn the 
back cranked up where he was sitting almust upright. 

Q Ana that's wnero he's been all day? 

l'1R. SPEAKES: Yes. 

Q Hooked up tu anything? 

•111R. SP EAKES : 
there wds no foud given 
an antiuiotic ~ccp or I 
whctt's tnc <loctur Sdyl 

He ilad an IV this morning. But that's -­
and I ~resume -- well, that could have been 
d0n' t l<UU\-J WhGt,,iar it WdS some Su.Ct of -­
Woula nave been an dntibiotic _t>rep? Pardon? 

u Proj:>hylactic antioodies but tb~y alsv give 
antibiutics i.i:1 the Vla!in. 

Mk. ~P~AKES: Yes. I don't know whetner it was some sort 
of su6Jst-ince, whatever the cor.t"ect worJ fv.r an inttl:.'iVCHOUS feeding. 

U ~vill l"l.t:s. keagdn stay overnight tornghti 

l'11R. SPEAKES: No, she uhl not. Some people ha.J an e:cror 
un that, includl.n'.::J 'l'nu 'f.1mes and ABC, that sue stayed uv~rnight, and 
I thuu9nt I was clear r .. m that yest~rday. She went --

Q Will she toniyht? 
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U That's what sne said. 

Mk. SPEAKES: I don't t11ink she plans to, no. Oh, also, 
she plans -- did I say that? -- plans to host tne diplomatic 
reception on Monday and deliver remarks tiersei.f at the diplomatic 
reception. S11e has not detecmined -- she has a tri~ sclleduled 
Wednesday an~ sha's not cteciQect whether she'll do that. 

Next week, we Ji~n•t have a lot on the schedule except a 
couple of Congressional meetings -- one separdte me~ting witn the 
Sc.mate Findnce R,.'!pUblicans, one with the Democrats. I thinlt one was 
a breakfast and one was a lunch. 

U Will there be no news conference this month? 
(Laughter.) 

.MR. SPEAKES: Yeah -- uo anything to get out ot a news 
conference, won't we. 

Q Wh•an Cdn a puol gv up to s~e him'? 

Q When was the last time the President ate? 

1-WlR. SPEAK£$: Last time he ate? It's been quit~ a while. 
l don't Know what day he startea on 
proctoscupic, Sam. Let's see, that 
b~en Wednesday night or Tnursday. 
goo~ uay, a good 24 hours, if not 

the preparation for the 
was on Fri~ay so it could have 

I don't Know. It's prouaoly a 
36 nours before. 

U Whdt 0thec rooms are tnere in ttie suite? 

MR. SP&\KES: t•lctri<:, y0u 1 vi;? got my foluer there with the 
room list, or you can just call them out from bacK -- Du you remamDer 
tne rooms in th~ suite? 'filere's a sitting ruorn, ther~•s d 

presiaent1dl oedroorn, there aro two bedrooms for aides, there's a 
c0nterence room, ctnu t:i1en uutsiae the suite, there's a nurse's 
station ana a couple of equipment rooms and a 

1vuL WEIN.BERG: ·rwo exam rooms a.ncJ. a kitchen. 

Ma. SPEAKES: Twu exam roums and a kitcnen. 

Q Which doctor s_pant the ni<;}ilt in th~ suite? 

111.iR. SP.l:i:AKES: Dr. Hutton, and I don't know wh-.!tner Dr. 
Smi tn -- Dr. Hut tun an-:.! Dr. Smi t:n both stayed out and both -- did 
they both sleep in the suite 0r -- I know Dr. riutton did. 

Q Helen had a qu1;;stion here a minute ago. 

NR. WEINBERG: Yes, th~y Dvtn Sl.Jpt in the suite. 

Q Do you cc.mtempLite taking d poul up at some point 
next week to see nim? 

1•1R. SPEAKES: Oh, tihlt's well ahead. We diu debate ab0ut 
-- if w0 iluve ndcl time, we woulJ. have strung lines a.nu worked from 
that observation ruum, looking uown on tue sury~ry. But I cdlled 
Jack an-1 he said he coulu.n' t get tile lines in in time. (.L<.1ughter.} 

u WG'll send a doctor ln. 

u -- thoy make al.i th~t etuff. (.Laughter.) 

.MR. SP~AK~S: Yes, that's .r; ignt. Yes, we shoul.J ndve 
brou1:.iht thuse guys UJ?. 

u Any possibility of still photos? 

.'11<.. SPEAKES: ~vuuld I .luo},. li i<e De Vries if I woi:e a 
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wni te coat ·i 

Q No, but --

U tiave you seen the scar? Have you seen tne scar·, 

MR. SPEAKES: Pardon, 

Q Any t>OSSibl.i.ty -- any still photos? 

MR. SPEAi<ES: Not -- tnere husn't really been any 11ade, 
Chris, dnct 1 don't know wnetner we' 11 d\) any tomorrow. 

Q Well, ouviously, tne signing ot the letter woulct b~ 
something we'd all ~every interested in. 

f-'i.l:(. SPEAKES: ~Je ,Jiun' t make a photo of that, n~dlly 
didn't. 

U You sai.~ Mr~. R~agan will no~t th~ diplomatic 
reception, not Vice President Bush? 

MR. SPBAKES: 'l'nat's right, Mrs. Reagan plans to. 

Q Larry? 

1YU{. SPEAKES: Yr,;;s'l 

Q I just want to get this clear. In tne letter here, 
you say, "I do not i..>elicve that t.il~ drafters of this aJ.m~ndment 
intendeu this application to tile situation such as the instant one." 
But you are saying, in assencu, tnat tnis is tantdmount to invoking 
tne 25th? 

SENIOR ADMINISTRATIO~ OFFICIAL: l think that would be 
the best way for you to phrdse it, as I SdY on DEEP BACKGROUND a.gain. 

Everybouy's had enough? Do you ull want to try to work 
out som~tning, in tne Cd.lm cool, outsi~e of the liyhts here aoout how 
we handle coming back? Have you all got to do talkim;} on the front 
row wilen we come back? 

Q Well, let mo just tell you somcth1ny --

Q Let's talk about it. 

I proi.>doly coulu 11av~ reau the letter on 
camera. 

0 Yes, why ctiun't you read tne letter a.nu then say you 
aitin't want to discuss it, you woulJn't comment on it 

Q Here comes tne sU:Cf,rise tnat none of us art~ ready 
f0r -- we're on the air, live, dll three of us. Ou.c anch~;rmlo;ln are 
saying, "rJhdt it. this'l" You l<nvw, u.el~-3ations ot p,.}We.cs. Have we 
yut to tell 

Q 'tvi;;:ry viewer w..:ints tu Knuw wllat's goinlJ on here. 

Q -- whveve, th~ ne.1.l 16 ~ll'cttcninlJ ti1is. And I mean we 
ctpoio~ize t0 uur cullea~u~s for the interruption, ~ut, goduammit, we 
nave c1. joi.J to uo, tou. 

M~. SPEAKES: Ausulutely. 

U Th~t•s right. 

1"1R. SPE.l\K.£5: ... ~uw, if dnyuudy' s (JOt quest ions, U1en mayi.:>"' 
yuu' ~ o.at ter st<.ly 11~re and asK th~.n on the rec0ru. oecause l 'm goiny 
to see Re9an and ec.1t. So I'm nvt -:1oin'::l to hold ofiice hou:cs. 
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Anyboay got any questions on the recorti Defore tne camera here? 
There's not much more I can ddd. I mean --

0 Are y0u ~oing to announce over a speaker wnen it's 
over? 

MR. SPEAKES: Yes. ~~e' 11 navl;! somebody come over and 
announce that. 

Okay, now. I a.i.u't stopping. 

Q Larry, no\', are yuu goL.9 tu let us know i11formally 
that tne surgery is over? 

MR. SPEAKES: We'll have someoudy come to thls microphone 
and say it's completed, and that will be about it. 

Q Upstain;? 

Q U_i?stairs in tne filin'::3 room? 

MR. SPEAK.ES: Yes, we'll make a \-.Jlde circulation. 

U rlow much warning will we get before the formal, on 
camera ~riefing? 

MR. SP:t;AKES: Oh, we'.1.1 give yuu ten or fifteen minutes, 
I hope. 

Anyoocty else? 

'fHE P .RESS: 11hank you. 
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